REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT IN SAMSUN, KASTAMONU AND ERZURUM NUTS II REGIONS-
 
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
III
 
 
GENERAL QUESTIONS
 
Eligibility of Applicants/Partners
 
Q126. If the local authorities have debts other than taxes or social security charges like electricity, may they apply?
A. The local authorities should meet only the eligibility criteria stated in the Section 2.1.1 (1) and (2) of the Guidelines. Provided that they meet those criteria and they fulfilled obligations relating to the payment of taxes or social security contributions, they can apply. Please see also the answers to the Q4 and the answer to the below question.
 
Q127. A new regulation was established related to the restructuring of the debts of the municipalities with the Decision of the Council of Ministers No. 2005/8928 that was published in the Official Gazette No. 25845 dated 14/06/2005. Can the municipalities benefiting from the Decision of the Council of Ministers apply to this grant scheme?
A. Yes provided that Municipality in question submit a sworn statement that they are benefiting the Decision of the Council of Ministers No. 2005/8928 that was published in the Official Gazette No. 25845 dated 14/06/2005 and they do not have any other debt (social security contributions and taxes) arisen after 31. 12. 2004. Please see also answer to the Q4 in the first set of FAQ and Answers.

  
Eligibility of Costs- Budget
 
Q128. Are the tendering and tender evaluation costs under the projects are eligible?
A. Yes, once the grant is awarded to the Beneficiary, provided that the conditions specified in the Section 2.1.4 of the Guidelines are met, procurement costs foreseen within the action are eligible.

 
Q129. What exchange rate (Euro/YTL) should we use?
A. The exchange rate to be used for the conversion from other currencies into EUR shall be the monthly rates published in the Supplement of the European Communities’ Official Journal, which is available after the 10th of each month. These rates can be found also on the following Internet address:
http://www.europa.eu.int/comm/budget/inforeuro/en/index.htm
 
Q130. Which unit rates should be used for the calculation of budget for equipment, supplies and services?
A. The costs of equipment, supplies and services should be calculated in accordance with the market rates as the costs must comply with the principles of sound financial management, in particular value for money and cost-effectiveness.
 
Q131. Do we have to submit the proforma invoices from the suppliers with the application?
A. The Applicants are recommended to make market researches in order to determine the costs commensurate with the market rates. However, they are not obliged to put into their application proforma invoices.
 
Q132. Are the costs of prizes or gifts given to the best performers in the “best district without pollution” eligible?
A. No.

 
Co-financing

Q133. Should the Applicants/partners have to submit a declaration for the co-financing amount? Should the expenditures from the co-financing of the Applicant/partners be shown in the budget table?
A. The co-finance amount should be stated in the Application Form in the Annex to the Budget; Expected Sources of Funding. Applicants/partners do not have to submit a separate declaration for the co-finance amount. 
 
Application Form & Supporting Documents
 
Q134. Can the local authorities as being public authorities approve the photocopies of the supporting documents requested in the Guidelines by themselves?
A. Yes, the photocopies of supporting documents can be certified as true by an authorised public authority.  
 
Q135. In the Section I.1.3 of the Application Form, there is an explanation related to the full-financing of the action is given. Could you please clarify?
A. The financing of the action in full is not applicable to these three grant schemes. Please refer to the respective section (1.3 of the Guidelines). 
 
 
Project Staff
 
Q136. Can retirees/retired civil servants work in the projects?
A. Yes, provided that they have the necessary qualifications and skills required by the projects.
 
Q137. Are there specific criteria for project coordinators?
A. There is no specific criteria for project coordinators, but they should have necessary qualifications and skills required for coordinating the project. 
 
 
Q138. Can the contact person of the project be project coordinator or project staff?
A. Yes. 
 
Q139. What happens if the Project coordinator/project staff resigns before the project starts?
A. It is the responsibility of the applicant to secure that the project is performed with relevant qualified and experienced staff along implementation. 
 
Conditions Applicable to the Implementation of the Projects
 
Q140. Are taxes including VAT are eligible costs in the procurement of the supplies and services?
A. The taxes including VAT are not eligible costs. As stipulated in the Law no: 5303 dated 22.02.2005 and the related Communication no: 25820 dated in 20.05.2005 within the framework of financial cooperation agreement between the Republic of Turkey and EC for procurement of supplies, works and services, “taxes, customs, and import duties and levies and/or taxes of equivalent effect shall be charged neither to the grant nor to the co-financing contribution provided by Turkey.” The Communication No.1, issued by the Ministry of Finance (MoF) making the tax exemption provisions established in the Law No.5303 is available at the website of the MoF: http://www.gelirler.gov.tr/gelir2.nsf-  Ana Sayfa  (1 Sıra No'lu Türkiye - Avrupa Birliği Çerçeve Anlaşması Genel Tebliği)
 
Q141. Is the co-financing contribution to be made by the Beneficiaries that will be awarded grants under these three grant schemes tax-exempted?
A. Yes. For further information please refer to the answer to the Q140.

 
Q142. Could you please clarify the auditing process if we request “operating grant”? 
A. Operating grants are not applicable within these three grant schemes. 

Within this CfPs, the Applicants under the Small Scale Infrastructure Grant Scheme who request grant more than 300 000 EUR are obliged to submit an audit report at the time of submission of the proposal, certifying the accounts for the last financial year available. Moreover, when the grant is awarded, they also have to submit an external audit of the Action's accounts at the time of the request for final payment.
On the other hand, the Applicants under the Small Scale Infrastructure Grant Scheme who request grant more than 100 000 EUR and the Applicants under the SMEs Grant Scheme who request grant equal or more than 75 000 EUR will submit the audit report only at the time of the request for final payment.
 
Q143. From whom audit reports should be obtained?
A. Audit reports should be produced by an approved auditor who is a member of an internationally recognised supervisory body for statutory auditing such as Court of Auditors or Chamber of Certified Public Accountants or Independent Audit Companies certified by Capital Market Board.
 
Q144. What costs are included under administrative costs? Do we have to submit invoices for administrative costs if the grant is awarded?
A. Administrative costs are indirect costs .No justification document is to be requested from the grant Beneficiaries. 

 
Q145. Is the procurement of supplies, services and works under the grant projects managed by the Contracting Authority or the grant Beneficiary?
A. The procurement will be carried out by the grant Beneficiary according to the procurement rules as stated in Annex IV to the grant contract.
 

SPECIFIC QUESTIONS on LOCAL DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES GRANT SCHEME
 
Q149. As a Chamber of Agriculture in Samsun, can we apply with a project aiming to increase the competitiveness of tobacco producers through the improvement of agricultural techniques for the production of tobacco? 
A. Yes. Please check Section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines.
 
Q150. Can we apply as a Chamber of Notary to this grant scheme? We have accountancy, but we can only submit balance sheet, not profit/loss account, since we have annual income coming from the centre? Can we apply under these conditions? 
A. Please see Section 2.1.1. of the Guidelines for applicants (“Eligibility of Applicants”), Section 2.2.1. of the Guidelines for Applicants (“Supporting Documents”). Provided that all conditions stated in the Guidelines are met and the Applicant is a legal entity with own set of accounts, it can apply.
 
Q151. Can the different faculties of a university submit projects? Can the grants be awarded to the different faculties respecting the fact that one faculty may be awarded at most three grants in this grant scheme?  
A. The Applicants should be independent entities with own set of accounts. As stated in the Section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines maximum three grants may be awarded to one applicant provided that it does not use the same staff, premises, etc. and respects avoiding overlapping and duplication of activities and funding.

 

Q152. Can the partners be from the EU countries?
A. Yes. Please see Section 2.1.2 of the Guidelines. 
 
Q153. Can one action be implemented in EU country such as participation in fair etc.?
A. Please see Section 2.1.3 and 2.1.4 of the Guidelines. Individual sponsorships for participation in workshops, seminars, conferences, fair etc. are ineligible actions. However, if participation in fair is necessary to carry out the proposed action, it may be eligible provided that it complies with the principles of sound financial management, in particular value for money and cost-effectiveness and travel and subsistence costs for staff taking part in action do not exceed these normally borne by the beneficiary or his partners as the case may be any flat-rate reimbursement must not exceed the scales approved annually by the EC. 
 
Q154. As an Association, can we buy only fruit trees from the grant?
A. Please see the answer to the Q60 in the first set of FAQ and Answers. Please also note that actions related to entirely supply of the equipment are ineligible actions as stated in the Section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines.
 
Q155. Can we buy cattle from this grant scheme? Can the costs of life security of animals be met from the grant?
A. No. Actions that are entirely related to the procurement of cattle is not eligible. Moreover, as stated in the Section 2.1.4, the costs should be necessary for the implementation of the project and have been actually incurred by the Beneficiaries or their partners during the implementing period for the action. 
 
Q156. Are the establishment costs of an Agricultural Development Cooperative in a pilot village eligible?
A. No, because the establishment costs of such cooperatives are mostly related to the payment of taxes which are not eligible costs.
 
Q157. Is the construction of irrigation pond (gölet) an eligible action in this grant scheme?
A. No. Purely investment projects in infrastructure are not eligible in this grant scheme. Please see Section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines. Such projects can be submitted under the Small Scale Infrastructure Grant Scheme.
 
Q158. Can we buy vehicles from the grant if it is necessary for the implementation of the project?
A. Yes if it is strongly justified and deemed necessary for the implementation of the project.
 
Q159. As an NGO, we are planning a course for a duration of several months for blind people. We want to rent a flat for the potential participants coming from villages. We want to meet their accommodation costs during the course/seminar from the grant as the participants cannot afford them. Is this an eligible cost?
A. Renting costs of a flat and accommodation costs of participants can be eligible for a short-period of time. However, the sustainability of the project after the end of financing should be taken into account while designing such a project.
 
Q160. Could a Vocational Training School/ University apply for the reconstruction of old houses that will be transferred into a tourist attraction center?
A. No. Purely investment projects in infrastructure are not eligible in this grant scheme. Please see Section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines . 
 
Q161. The applicant does not have any land and wishes to implement the sample fruit garden project in fields of villagers like that: 2-3 fruit trees are to be planted in the field of every villager in the target group and left there at the end of the project. Is it re-granting and not acceptable, so what is the solution if the applicant does not own the land?
A.  The projects only related to the supply of fruit trees are not eligible. Any re-granting is forbidden.

 
SPECIFIC QUESTIONS on SMEs GRANT SCHEME
Q162. The commercial balance sheet of our company shows loss in 2004, but the financial balance sheet shows profit after adding the costs that are not accepted by the law according to the tax legislation into the loss. Thus, we have paid corporation tax (kurumlar vergisi). May we apply?
A. If the balance sheet that is officially valid and submitted to local financial authorities shows profit, then you can apply. Please also refer to the answer to the Q78 and Q120 respectively in the first and second set of the FAQ and Answers.
 

Q163. Those real persons who charged with “business bookkeeping” (işletme defteri) don’t have balance sheets, they have “account abstracts”(hesap özeti). Can account abstracts of that kind of applicants be accepted instead of balance sheets?
A. The Applicant SMEs should be legal entities engaged in an economic activity irrespective of their legal form. For those individual companies that do not have balance sheets, the “account abstracts” can be submitted instead of balance sheets provided that all other supporting documents listed in the Section 2.2.1 of the Guidelines are submitted.
 
Q164. As being a limited company, we will apply without a partner since we have already more than one partner. Do our partners have to sign the Partnership Statement in the Application Form? If two persons are authorised to represent the company, should both of them sign the Declaration by the Applicant? In the application form whether all partners of the company should fill in the Section II.3.4 of the Application Form?
A. Partners of an Application shall be different legal entities which agreed (a) to apply together for the same Action and (b) to identify which among them will act as the Applicant.
The "Partnership statement" and "Declaration of the Applicant" shall be signed by the dully authorised legal representatives of the concerned parties as described in the Section 2.1.2 of the Guidelines. 

The Section II.3.4 (b) of the Application Form should be filled by each partner of the company.

 
Q165. We want to apply with a project aiming to restore a historical Turkish bath, but the Turkish bath is transferred to the Foundation? On the name of whom, we should apply?
A. The Turkish Bath shall be under the control of the Applicant/Partners. The Legal entity of the Applicant/partners shall determine to which relevant grant scheme, the Applicant/partners shall apply (see Section 2.1.1. of each "guidelines to the Applicant"). 
Restoration of traditional buildings to be used for tourist purposes is an eligible action as stated in the Section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines. However, only SMEs can apply to the SMEs grant scheme. Therefore, provided that all conditions specified in the Guidelines and necessary authorisation and other licences for the implementation of the project are met, you can apply to this grant scheme. 
The Foundation itself may apply to the Local Development Initiatives grant scheme, provided that all conditions in the related Guidelines are met, with the same project in which you may participate as Associates or Subcontractors. Please check the answer to Q55 in the first set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers.
 
Q166. In order to diversify my products, I want to rehabilitate my building and purchase some work-benchs through submission of a project covering both activities to this grant scheme, is it eligible?
A. Costs of construction works related to the purchase of the equipment, warehouse improvements and rehabilitation of buildings are eligible. Please also check Section 2.1.1 and Section 2.1.4 of the Guidelines.
 
Q167. You request in the Business Plan the exchange rate (TL /EUR) to be used for conversion calculations for financial statements. What exchange rate should we use for 2004?
A. Please see the above answer to the Q129. For the exchange rate to be used for financial statements in 2004, the monthly rate for December, published on 30 December 2004 in the Supplement of the European Communities’ Official Journal (2004/C 325/01) can be used. (Monthly Euro exchange rate for December 2004 for the Turkish lira is 1 829 000 TRL). 

 

Q168. Could you please clarify how we can demonstrate our ability to contribute to the proposed investment cost as stated in the Section 2.3 of the Guidelines?
A. The Applicant SMEs will show their ability to contribute to the investment costs in their most recent accounts (balance sheet, profit-loss account of the previous financial year), Business Plans, etc. to be submitted with the application.
 
Q169. We had benefited from “e-trade” support of KOSGEB. Can we get the same support from this grant scheme?
A. No. If an action was already financed by another grant scheme, it cannot be eligible within a new grant scheme whatever was the context of the initial scheme. Please also see the Section 2.1.3 of the Guidelines (“De minimis rule”) and the Section 2.1.4 of the Guidelines.

 
Q170. Should the partners of the project be operating in the same sector?
A. It is not obligatory to have partners in the same sector.

  
Q171. If I am employing workers that do not have social security, may I apply?
A. No. Please see the answer to the Q90 in the first set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers.
 
Q172. What does “all year” refer to in the Budget?
A. "All year" means "for the total implementation period of the project/Action." In that scheme, 12 months, which is the maximum duration of the projects.

 
Q173. May a company registered to the Chamber of Craftsmen and Artisans apply to this grant scheme? If yes, if the production of that company is being carried out through contract manufacturing since it lost its machines, in this case may it apply?
A. Yes, such a registered company is eligible see Footnote 2 of section 2.1.1. ruling eligibility of applicants.
The eligibility of your company is not decided upon what is performed by your company now. The relevance of your application to that grant scheme will be determined upon your capacity to describe how and what you want to achieve in your application form and all its relevant supportive information. 

Q174. How much amount should be stated as the cost of auditing in the budget?
A. Audit costs should be in line with the market rates.
 
Q175. What are the obstacles in the procurement of cattle from abroad and from local market?
A. For detailed and accurate information, please consult to the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs.
 
Q176. Are the costs of raw materials eligible costs? Are they eligible for start-ups?
A. Raw materials directly linked to the implementation of the Action are eligible as long as the applicant properly justifies the rationale of the quantity and reflect in the budget the market price of such material. 
Q177. What does seed capital refers to? Does it cover the investment costs for the establishment of a new production unit? 
A. Seed capital are costs covering costs for research, assessment and development of an initial concept elaborated by a company that may be in the process of being set up or may have been in business for a short time but has not sold its product commercially.
 
Q178. A profitable company in existence as sole trader till 2004, in December 2004 was registered as Limited and shows no profit at the end of the year. Is it eligible to apply?
A. If the company can show that it made a profit in the last financial year through the submission of its accounts (the profit and loss accounts and the balance sheet for the previous financial year) and if it produces accounts for the first six months of 2005 to show it is trading profitably then it may be eligible.
 
Q179. There has been a general problem with many SMEs who do not show a profit for last year because either they started last year and invested last year but did not start to receive much or any income?
A. Please see the answer to the Q78 in the first set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers.
 
 
SPECIFIC QUESTIONS on SMALL SCALE INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT SCHEME
 
Q180. Is the construction of irrigation ponds by the irrigation unions an eligible action? If yes, do we have to construct irrigation ponds according to the EU standards?
A. The construction of irrigation ponds can be an eligible action provided that all conditions specified in the Guidelines are met and all permits required for the implementation of the project are obtained. The small scale infrastructure projects should contribute to the achievement of general EU and national goals of upgrading infrastructure in the target regions. If the proposed irrigation ponds are against the EU standards and should be reconstructed during the accession, then the investment can not be deemed as sustainable. Moreover, if there is any predetermined national standard determined by the relevant regulations, the Beneficiary should have to respect them in the implementation of the project.
 
Q181. We have a sewage project and the pipeline covers a part of land that is owned by private persons. Is an approval declaration from land owners (muvafakat) enough at the submission stage?

A. As stated in the Section 2.1.1 of the Guidelines, the Applicant should retain property on the infrastructure for at least 5 years after the completion of the construction works which supposes ownership on the land or a long term contract for the usage of the land. At the submission stage, it might be considered enough to attach a document certifying that the land was handed over to the Applicant for continuous easement. Please see also the answer to the Q107 in the first set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers.

 
Q182. It is very difficult to get some of the permits required for the implementation of the infrastructure projects because their costs are very high or the time period to get them is, because of heavy bureaucracy, so long that we won’t be able to provide them at the submission stage? How can we apply?
A. For such permits which are so expensive and the time period to obtain them goes beyond the deadline for the submission of proposals, the Applicants can submit a justification letter enclosed with their application at the submission stage provided that their projects have high level of maturity. However, if their project is selected, the Beneficiary should submit all necessary permits required for the implementation of the project at the contracting stage. Otherwise, the grant contracts can not be signed.
 
Q183. For Small Scale Infrastructures, if the applicant has no partner, would it have a negative impact on the evaluation?
A. No.  However, if the services or facilities are planned to be open to the collective use of many local authorities or neighbourhood local authorities, then it would be better to submit such projects via partnership. 
 
Q184. Is it obligatory to submit a written declaration by the Applicant to retain the ownership of the infrastructure constructed at least 5 years following the completion of the works?
A. Yes. Please check the “supporting documents” under the Section 2.2.1 and “Administrative Compliance Checklist” under the Section 2.3. of the related Guidelines. 
 
Q185. What “Project Status” stated in the Feasibility Study refers to?
A. It refers to explanation in order to learn at what level the infrastructure project is, that is, to learn whether the project is at the pre-feasibility stage or at the engineering design stage, etc.
 
Q186. What does the information on the supervision of the works refer to?
A. It refers to detailed information about intended way of supervision of the works, that is, contracted out via service contract in accordance with the Annex IV- Procurement Procedures to the grant contract or to be undertaken by the Beneficiary/a public organisation on behalf of Beneficiary. In the latter case, the Applicant should demonstrate its capacity and capability to handle it, for instance, by submission of the CVs of the engineers working for the Applicant, other resources, etc. 
Q187. We want to develop a potable water network system in an area covering some villages. However, we could not submit network alternatives with topography and geology at the small scales (1/200, 1/500, 1/1000), but only at the 1/5000 scale from land registry (tapu kadastro). Can we apply?
A.  The submitted projects should have high level of maturity to be basis for tendering (if any). Therefore, the project’s technical and financial documentation as requested in the Guidelines should be complete and accurate. Under the circumstances that the maps/plans at the scales requested in the Guidelines can not be obtained from the relevant authorities, the Applicant may apply with the existent maps/plans that the relevant authorities can supply, but those maps/plans should be detailed enough to allow the implementation of the infrastructure project. Please also check the answers to the Questions 110 and 113 in the first set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers 1.
 
Q188. Could we provide maps at scale 1:100,000 rather than requested 1:25 000 since the latest are confidential?
A. Please refer to the answer to the above question.
 
Q189. Whether a letter is requested that an EIA is not needed if it is clear from the attached documents to the Application form that the proposed investment does not require EIA?
A. As stated in the Section 2.2.1 of the Guidelines, following the screening exercise with the Ministry of Environment and Forestry, if the exercise ends up in that EIA is not necessary then the Applicant should have to submit a letter issued by the Ministry.
 
Q190. In Annex B2 to the Guidelines, Feasibility Template, there is no reference to Transportation Infrastructure and Social and Public Infrastructure. How will we prepare feasibility study?
A. The Feasibility Study for Transportation Infrastructure and Social and Public Infrastructure will be prepared according to the template given in Annex B2 (3.7) to the Guidelines. Please see also the answer to the Q103, Q110 and Q125 in the first and second set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers.
 
Q191. Can the guest house of the municipality be restored for tourism purposes?  
A. Yes provided that the guest house will be used for tourism purposes (i.e. accessible not only for Municipality staff but for all potential users on equal terms) and all eligibility conditions stated in the Guidelines are met.
 
Q192. Can the universities be partner with the municipalities in a restoration project?
A. No. The eligible applicants within this grant scheme are local authorities and their associations (birlikleri) and the partners have to meet the same eligibility criteria as applicants, the universities can not be partner in this grant scheme, but associates (iştirakçi).
 
Q193. Will we submit the technical designs and bill of quantities in three copies?
A. All supporting documents must be supplied in one original and three copies. Please check the Section 2.2.1 and 2.2.2 of the Guidelines.
 
Q194. What refers to Implementing Authorities in the Feasibility Template?
A. It refers to the Applicant and partners who are responsible for the implementation of the project.
 
Q195. As a municipality, we want to open wells in the geothermal resources, thereby, develop better heating systems for many houses. This will replace coal and thus improve the quality of life. May it be an eligible action?
A. Yes provided that all eligibility conditions specified in the Guidelines are met. Please also see answer to the Q7 in the first set of  FAQ. 
 
Q196. Will the priority be given to the common projects developed by various municipalities together for the common use of services or facilities? If five municipalities come together for a common solid waste system, what will be the maximum amount of the grant to be awarded to one municipality? 
A. For the common use of services or facilities by many municipalities, it is recommended to submit a common project. However, one municipality will act as “lead Applicant” and, if selected, as the Contracting party (the “Beneficiary”) and the maximum amount of the grant for a project may not exceed EUR 1,800,000.
 

Q197. Can the various phases of a common infrastructure project developed by more than one municipality be implemented by those municipalities separately?

A. Please the answer to the above question.

 

Q198. If the applicant’s project covers various infrastructures such as sewer line, storm drain, water supply for a village, would it be possible to offer one project which covers the subject infrastructures?
A. The components of the project should be appropriate, practical and consistent with the objectives and expected results and the overall design of the project should be coherent. Please also note that the proposed infrastructure project should not need any other investment to be put under operation (eg. if there is no sewage system in a village, waste water treatment plant can not be operated.) 
 
Q199. Would you please advise if a historical building that belongs to a foundation (which is currently rented to the Special Provincial Administration for 20 years) would be eligible for funding under the SSI grant scheme when Special Provincial Administration prepares and submits a restoration project for it?
A. As stated in the Guidelines, the applicant should submit a document which certifies that the property has been handed over for 5 years to the applicant. Please see also the answer to the Q107 in the first set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers.

 
Q200. If the land is owned by the Treasury/State on which the infrastructure investment will be carried out, how can we get ownership of the land?
A. The applicant should guarantee the access to the infrastructure for all potential users on equal terms retain the ownership of the infrastructure constructed for at least five years after completion of the construction works. The applicant should submit a document certifying above conditions. 
 
Q201. If the Municipality meets the costs of the local office, human resources and other costs from its own resources, is it necessary to add them into the budget?
A. The budget should cover total eligible cost of the action. However, Municipalities can also choose to provide resources as in kind contribution (In kind contributions must be listed separately in on Annex to the Budget). In this case it shall be noted that this choice will have positive impact on the evaluation as it will contribute in the ownership, efficiency and sustainability of the project. Please also refer to the answer to the Q13 in the first set of Frequently Asked Questions and Answers.
 
Q202. Can the Bank for Provinces carry out the supervision of our works? Can we subcontract the supervision works to the private companies and can it be budgeted?
A. Please refer to the answer to the Q186 for the supervision of the works. Moreover, the grant can not be given to the central public authorities for financing their routine activities.
The cost for supervision should be budgeted under the Budget Item 5. Other costs, services- 5.9. Supervision.
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